KEY ENERGY SERVICES INC Form SC 13D May 28, 2013 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 13D

(Rule 13d-101)

Under the Securities Act of 1934

(Amendment No.)*

Key Energy Services, Inc.

(Name of issuer)

Common Stock

(Title of class of securities)

492914106

(CUSIP number)

Doron Lipshitz, Esq.

O Melveny & Myers LLP

7 Times Square

New York, New York 10036

(212) 326-2000

(Name, address and telephone number of person authorized to receive notices and communications on behalf of filing persons)

May 23, 2013

(Date of event which requires filing of this statement)

If the filing person has previously filed a statement on Schedule 13G to report the acquisition that is the subject of this Schedule 13D, and is filing this schedule because of \$240.13d 1(e), 240.13d 1(f) or 240.13d 1(g), check the following box. x

Note: Schedules filed in paper format shall include a signed original and five copies of the schedule, including all exhibits. See §240.13d 7 for other parties to whom copies are to be sent.

The remainder of this cover page shall be filled out for a reporting person s initial filing on this form with respect to the subject class of securities, and for any subsequent amendment containing information which would alter disclosures provided in a prior cover page.
 The information required on the remainder of this cover page shall not be deemed to be filed for the purpose of Section 18 of the Securities
 Exchange Act of 1934 (Act) or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section of the Act but shall be subject to all other provisions of the Act (however, *see* the *Notes*).

CUSIP No. 492914106

1. NAME OF REPORTING PERSON

MHR INSTITUTIONAL PARTNERS III LP 2. CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX IF A MEMBER OF A GROUP

(a) " (b) x

3. SEC USE ONLY

4. SOURCE OF FUNDS (See Instructions)

WC

- 5. CHECK IF DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS IS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO ITEMS 2(d) or 2(e) "
- 6. CITIZENSHIP OR PLACE OF ORGANIZATION

Delaware 7. SOLE VOTING POWER

NUMBER OF

SHARES		14,074,070
BENEFICIALLY	8.	SHARED VOTING POWER

OWNED BY

- EACH 0 9. SOLE DISPOSITIVE POWER
- REPORTING

PERSON

14,074,070WITH10.SHARED DISPOSITIVE POWER

11. AGGREGATE AMOUNT BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY EACH REPORTING PERSON

14,074,070

12. CHECK IF THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT IN ROW (11) EXCLUDES CERTAIN SHARES "

13. PERCENT OF CLASS REPRESENTED BY AMOUNT IN ROW (11)

9.2%

14. TYPE OF REPORTING PERSON

PN

CUSIP No. 492914106

1. NAME OF REPORTING PERSON

MHR INSTITUTIONAL ADVISORS III LLC 2. CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX IF A MEMBER OF A GROUP

(a) " (b) x

3. SEC USE ONLY

4. SOURCE OF FUNDS (See Instructions)

AF

- 5. CHECK IF DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS IS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO ITEMS 2(d) or 2(e) "
- 6. CITIZENSHIP OR PLACE OF ORGANIZATION

Delaware 7. SOLE VOTING POWER

NUMBER OF

SHARES		14,074,070
	8.	SHARED VOTING POWER
BENEFICIALLY		

OWNED BY

- EACH 0 9. SOLE DISPOSITIVE POWER
- REPORTING

PERSON

14,074,070WITH10.SHARED DISPOSITIVE POWER

11. AGGREGATE AMOUNT BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY EACH REPORTING PERSON

14,074,070

12. CHECK IF THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT IN ROW (11) EXCLUDES CERTAIN SHARES "

13. PERCENT OF CLASS REPRESENTED BY AMOUNT IN ROW (11)

9.2%

14. TYPE OF REPORTING PERSON

00

CUSIP No. 492914106

1. NAME OF REPORTING PERSON

MHR FUND MANAGEMENT LLC 2. CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX IF A MEMBER OF A GROUP

(a) " (b) x

- 3. SEC USE ONLY
- 4. SOURCE OF FUNDS (See Instructions)

AF

- 5. CHECK IF DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS IS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO ITEMS 2(d) or 2(e) "
- 6. CITIZENSHIP OR PLACE OF ORGANIZATION

Delaware 7. SOLE VOTING POWER

NUMBER OF

SHARES		17,474,343
BENEFICIALLY	8.	SHARED VOTING POWER

OWNED BY

- EACH 0 9. SOLE DISPOSITIVE POWER
- REPORTING

PERSON

17,474,343 WITH 10. SHARED DISPOSITIVE POWER

11. AGGREGATE AMOUNT BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY EACH REPORTING PERSON

17,474,343

12. CHECK IF THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT IN ROW (11) EXCLUDES CERTAIN SHARES "

13. PERCENT OF CLASS REPRESENTED BY AMOUNT IN ROW (11)

11.5%

14. TYPE OF REPORTING PERSON

00

CUSIP No. 492914106

- 1. NAME OF REPORTING PERSON
- MHR HOLDINGS LLC 2. CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX IF A MEMBER OF A GROUP
 - (a) " (b) x
- 3. SEC USE ONLY
- 4. SOURCE OF FUNDS (See Instructions)

AF

- 5. CHECK IF DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS IS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO ITEMS 2(d) or 2(e) "
- 6. CITIZENSHIP OR PLACE OF ORGANIZATION
 - Delaware 7. SOLE VOTING POWER

NUMBER OF

SHARES 17,474,343 8. SHARED VOTING POWER BENEFICIALLY

OWNED BY

- EACH 0 9. SOLE DISPOSITIVE POWER
- REPORTING

PERSON

17,474,343 WITH 10. SHARED DISPOSITIVE POWER

11. AGGREGATE AMOUNT BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY EACH REPORTING PERSON

17,474,343

12. CHECK IF THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT IN ROW (11) EXCLUDES CERTAIN SHARES "

13. PERCENT OF CLASS REPRESENTED BY AMOUNT IN ROW (11)

11.5%

14. TYPE OF REPORTING PERSON

00

CUSIP No. 492914106

- 1. NAME OF REPORTING PERSON
 - MARK H. RACHESKY, M.D. CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX IF A MEMBER OF A GROUP

(a) " (b) x

3. SEC USE ONLY

2.

4. SOURCE OF FUNDS (See Instructions)

AF

- 5. CHECK IF DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS IS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO ITEMS 2(d) or 2(e) "
- 6. CITIZENSHIP OR PLACE OF ORGANIZATION
 - United States of America 7. SOLE VOTING POWER

NUMBER OF

SHARES 17,474,343 8. SHARED VOTING POWER BENEFICIALLY

OWNED BY

- EACH 0 9. SOLE DISPOSITIVE POWER
- REPORTING

PERSON

17,474,343 WITH 10. SHARED DISPOSITIVE POWER

11. AGGREGATE AMOUNT BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY EACH REPORTING PERSON

17,474,343

12. CHECK IF THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT IN ROW (11) EXCLUDES CERTAIN SHARES "

13. PERCENT OF CLASS REPRESENTED BY AMOUNT IN ROW (11)

11.5%

14. TYPE OF REPORTING PERSON

IN; HC

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Item 1. Security and Issuer.	8
Item 2. Identity and Background.	8
Item 3. Source and Amount of Funds or Other Consideration.	9
Item 4. Purpose of Transaction.	9
Item 5. Interest in Securities of the Issuer.	9
Item 6. Contracts, Arrangements, Understandings or Relationships with Respect to Securities of the Issuer.	10
Item 7. Material to be Filed as Exhibits.	10
SIGNATURES	11

Item 1. Security and Issuer.

This statement on Schedule 13D (this <u>Statement</u>) relates to shares of common stock, par value \$0.10 per share (the <u>Shares</u>), of Key Energy Services, Inc. (the <u>Issuer</u>). The securities reported herein were previously reported on Schedule 13G, which was filed on July 19, 2007.

The address of the principal executive offices of the Issuer is 1301 McKinney Street, Suite 1800, Houston, Texas.

Item 2. Identity and Background.

This Statement is filed on behalf of each of the following persons (collectively, the <u>Reporting Persons</u>):

- (i) MHR Institutional Partners III LP (<u>Institutional Partners III</u>);
- (ii) MHR Institutional Advisors III LLC (<u>Institutional Advisors III</u>);
- (iii) MHR Fund Management LLC (<u>Fund Management</u>);
- (iv) MHR Holdings LLC (<u>MHR Holding</u>s); and
- (v) Mark H. Rachesky, M.D. (<u>Dr. Rachesky</u>).

This Statement relates to Shares held for the accounts of each of MHR Institutional Partners II LP (Institutional Partners II), MHR Institutional Partners IIA LP (<u>Institutional Partners IIA</u>) and Institutional Partners III, each a Delaware limited partnership. MHR Institutional Advisors II LLC (<u>Institutional Advisors II</u>) is the general partner of each of Institutional Partners II and Institutional Partners IIA and, in such capacity, may be deemed to beneficially own the Shares held for the accounts of each of Institutional Partners II and Institutional Partners IIA. Institutional Advisors III is the general partner of Institutional Partners III and, in such capacity, may be deemed to beneficially own the Shares held for the account of Institutional Partners III. MHRC II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (<u>MHRC II</u>), is the managing member of Institutional Advisors II and, in such capacity, may be deemed to beneficially own the Shares held for the accounts of each of Institutional Partners II and Institutional Partners IIA. Fund Management is a Delaware limited liability company that is an affiliate of and has an investment management agreement with Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III and other affiliated entities, pursuant to which it has the power to vote or direct the vote and to dispose or to direct the disposition of the Shares reported herein and, accordingly, Fund Management may be deemed to beneficially own the Shares reported herein which are held for the account of each of Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III. MHR Holdings, a Delaware limited liability company, is the managing member of Fund Management and, in such capacity, may be deemed to beneficially own any Shares that are deemed to be beneficially owned by Fund Management. Dr. Rachesky is the managing member of MHRC II, Institutional Advisors III and MHR Holdings and, in such capacity, may be deemed to beneficially own the Shares held for the accounts of each of Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III.

The Reporting Persons:

The principal business of each of Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III is investment in securities.

Institutional Advisors II is a Delaware limited liability company and the general partner of each of Institutional Partners II and Institutional Partners IIA. The principal business of Institutional Advisors II is to provide management and advisory services to each of Institutional Partners II and Institutional Partners IIA. Institutional Advisors III is a Delaware limited liability company and the general partner of Institutional Partners III. The principal business of Institutional Advisors III is to provide management and advisory services to Institutional Partners III. The principal business of Institutional Advisors III is to provide management and advisory services to Institutional Partners III. MHRC II is a Delaware limited liability company and the managing member of Institutional Advisors II. The principal business of MHRC II is to serve as the managing member of Institutional Advisors II.

The principal business of Fund Management is to provide management and advisory services to each of Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners III, Institutional Partners II, Institutional Par

MHR Holdings is a Delaware limited liability company and the managing member of Fund Management. The principal business of MHR Holdings is to serve as the managing member of Fund Management.

Current information concerning the identity and background of the officer of Institutional Advisors II, Institutional Advisors III, MHRC II, Fund Management and MHR Holdings is set forth in <u>Annex A</u> hereto, which is incorporated by reference in response to this Item 2.

Dr. Rachesky is the managing member of MHRC II, Institutional Advisors III and MHR Holdings. The principal occupation of Dr. Rachesky, a United States citizen, is investment management.

Each Reporting Person s principal business address is 40 West 57th Street, 24th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10019.

During the past five years, none of the Reporting Persons and, to the best of the Reporting Persons knowledge, no other person identified in response to this Item 2 has been (a) convicted in a criminal proceeding or (b) been a party to any civil proceeding of a judicial or administrative body as a result of which he or it has been subject to a judgment, decree or final order enjoining future violations of, or prohibiting or mandating activities subject to, federal or state securities laws, or finding any violation with respect to such laws.

Item 3. Source and Amount of Funds or Other Consideration.

From June 24, 2005 to October 3, 2011, Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III acquired an aggregate of 17,474,343 Shares in open market purchases for aggregate consideration (excluding commissions) of approximately \$248,600,000. All of the funds required to acquire such Shares were obtained from the capital of Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III.

Item 4. Purpose of Transaction.

All of the Shares reported herein as having been acquired for the accounts of Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III were acquired for investment purposes.

On May 23, 2013, the Board of Directors (the <u>Board</u>) of the Issuer increased by one the number of Class II directors of the Board, the terms of which end at the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company, and elected Mark H. Rosenberg, a principal of Fund Management, to fill the resulting vacancy as of the same date.

Except as otherwise set forth in this statement, none of the Reporting Persons currently has plans or proposals which relate to or which would result in the occurrence of any of the actions or transactions described in subparagraphs (a) through (j) of Item 4 of Schedule 13D. The Reporting Persons reserve the right, from time to time and at any time, to (i) acquire additional Shares and/or other equity, debt, notes, instruments or other securities (collectively, <u>Securities</u>) of the Issuer (or its affiliates) in the open market or otherwise; (ii) dispose of any or all of the Securities in the open market or otherwise; (iii) engage in any hedging or similar transaction with respect to the Securities; or (iv) formulate other purposes, plans or proposals regarding the Issuer (or its affiliates) or any of the Securities, to the extent deemed advisable by the Reporting Persons.

Item 5. Interest in Securities of the Issuer.

The percentages set forth below are calculated based on information contained in the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013, which disclosed that there were 152,309,996 Shares outstanding as of April 26, 2013.

(a) (i) Institutional Partners II may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 966,176 Shares held for its own account (approximately 0.6% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3 (d)(1)(i) under the Act).

(ii) Institutional Partners IIA may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 2,434,097 Shares held for its own account (approximately 1.6% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(i) under the Act).

(iii) Institutional Advisors II may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 3,400,273 Shares (approximately 2.2% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(i) under the Act). This number consists of (A) 966,176 Shares held for the account of Institutional Partners II and (B) 2,434,097 Shares held for the account of Institutional Partners IIA.

(iv) Institutional Partners III may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 14,074,070 Shares held for its own account (approximately 9.2% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3 (d)(1)(i) under the Act).

(v) Institutional Advisors III may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 14,074,070 Shares (approximately 9.2% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3 (d)(1)(i) under the Act). This number consists of 14,074,070 Shares held for the account of Institutional Partners III.

Table of Contents

(vi) MHRC II may be deemed the beneficial owner of 3,400,273 Shares (approximately 2.2% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(i) under the Act). This number consists of all of the Shares otherwise described in Item 5(a)(iii) by virtue of MHRC II s position as the managing member of Institutional Advisors II.

(vii) Fund Management may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 17,474,343 Shares (approximately 11.5% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(i) under the Act). This number consists of all of the Shares otherwise described in this Item 5(a) by virtue of Fund Management s investment management agreement with Institutional Partners II, Institutional Partners IIA and Institutional Partners III.

(viii) MHR Holdings may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 17,474,343 Shares (approximately 11.5% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(i) under the Act). This number consists of all of the Shares otherwise described in this Item 5(a) by virtue of MHR Holdings position as the managing member of Fund Management.

(xix) Dr. Rachesky may be deemed the beneficial owner of 17,474,343 Shares (approximately 11.5% of the total number of Shares outstanding, calculated in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(i) under the Act). This number consists of all of the Shares otherwise described in this Item 5(a) by virtue of Dr. Rachesky s position as the managing member of each of MHRC II, Institutional Advisors III and MHR Holdings.

(b) (i) Institutional Partners II may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of 966,176 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Partners II as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 966,176 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Partners II as described above.

(ii) Institutional Partners IIA may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of 2,434,097 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Partners IIA as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 2,434,097 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Partners IIA as described above.

(iii) Institutional Advisors II may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of 3,400,273 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Advisors II as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 3,400,273 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Advisors II as described above.

(iv) Institutional Partners III may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of 14,074,070 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Partners III as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 14,074,070 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Partners III as described above.

(v) Institutional Advisors III may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of 14,074,070 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Advisors III as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 14,074,070 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Institutional Advisors III as described above.

(vi) MHRC II may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of 3,400,273 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by MHRC II as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 3,400,273 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by MHRC II as described above.

(vii) Fund Management may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of the 17,474,343 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Fund Management as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 17,474,343 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Fund Management as described above.

(viii) MHR Holdings may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of the 17,474,343 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by MHR Holdings as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 17,474,343 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by MHR Holdings as described above.

(xix) Dr. Rachesky may be deemed to have (x) the sole power to direct the disposition of the 17,474,343 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Dr. Rachesky as described above, and (y) the sole power to direct the voting of 17,474,343 Shares which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Dr. Rachesky as described above.

(c) Not applicable.

(d) (i) The partners of Institutional Partners II, including Institutional Advisors II, have the right to participate in the receipt of dividends from, or proceeds from the sale of, the securities held for the account of Institutional Partners II in accordance with their partnership interests in Institutional Partners II.

(ii) The partners of Institutional Partners IIA, including Institutional Advisors II, have the right to participate in the receipt of dividends from, or proceeds from the sale of, the securities held for the account of Institutional Partners IIA in accordance with their partnership interests in Institutional Partners IIA.

(iii) The partners of Institutional Partners III, including Institutional Advisors III, have the right to participate in the receipt of dividends from, or proceeds from the sale of, the securities held for the account of Institutional Partners III in accordance with their partnership interests in Institutional Partners III.

(e) Not applicable.

Item 6. Contracts, Arrangements, Understandings or Relationships with Respect to Securities of the Issuer.

Table of Contents

At the request of the Issuer and in connection with his appointment to the Board, Mr. Rosenberg executed and delivered a resignation letter that would be triggered if the beneficial ownership of Shares held by investment funds affiliated with Fund Management decreases below 5% of the Issuer s issued and outstanding Shares during Mr. Rosenberg s term, which resignation would become effective upon the Board s acceptance thereof. The foregoing discussion is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Letter of Resignation attached as Exhibit 1 to this Statement and incorporated into this Item 6 by reference.

Item 7. Material to be Filed as Exhibits

Exhibit Number

1

Description

Letter dated May 23, 2013 delivered by Mr. Rosenberg to the Board of Directors of Key Energy Services, Inc.

SIGNATURES

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this Schedule 13D is true, complete and correct.

Date: May 28, 2013

MHR INSTITUTIONAL PARTNERS III LP

By: MHR Institutional Advisors III LLC, its General Partner

By: /s/ Janet Yeung Name: Janet Yeung Title: Authorized Signatory

MHR INSTITUTIONAL ADVISORS III LLC

By: /s/ Janet Yeung Name: Janet Yeung Title: Authorized Signatory

MHR FUND MANAGEMENT LLC

By: /s/ Janet Yeung Name: Janet Yeung Title: Authorized Signatory

MHR HOLDINGS LLC

By: /s/ Janet Yeung Name: Janet Yeung Title: Authorized Signatory

MARK H. RACHESKY, M.D.

By: /s/ Janet Yeung, Attorney in Fact

Annex A

Reporting Person Fund Management	Name/Citizenship Mark H. Rachesky, M.D.	Principal Occupation President	Business Address 40 West 57 th Street
	(United States)		24 th Floor
			New York, NY 10019
MHR Holdings	Mark H. Rachesky, M.D.	President and Managing Member	40 West 57 th Street
	(United States)		24 th Floor
			New York, NY 10019
MHRC II	Mark H. Rachesky, M.D.	Managing Member	40 West 57th Street
	(United States)		24 th Floor
			New York, NY 10019
Institutional Advisors III	Mark H. Rachesky, M.D.	President and Managing Member	40 West 57 th Street
	(United States)		24 th Floor
			New York, NY 10019
Institutional Advisors II	Mark H. Rachesky, M.D.	President	40 West 57 th Street
	(United States)		24 th Floor
			New York, NY 10019

<u>Exhibit Index</u>

Exhibit No.	Description
1	Letter dated May 23, 2013 delivered by Mr. Rosenberg to the Board of Directors of Key Energy Services, Inc.
	13
/td>	

324,181

Total current liabilities

1,331,876

1,301,587

Deferred income taxes

2,396,448

2,417,108

Pension and other postretirement benefits

713,777

725,333

Other liabilities

266,429

262,308

Long-term debt

7,762,672

7,873,667

Equity:

Common stock, \$0.25 par value (1,750,000,000 authorized shares,

1,002,281,000 and 999,462,000 outstanding, respectively, and

1,027,986,000 issued, at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013)

256,997

256,997

Additional paid-in capital

4,181,483

4,321,056

Retained earnings

115,382

76,108

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax

(257, 491)

Table of Contents

(260,530)

Treasury stock

(298,699)

(338,150)

Total equity

3,997,672

4,055,481

Total liabilities and equity

\$

16,468,874

\$

16,635,484

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 AND 2013

(\$ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

(Unaudited)

	2014	2013
Revenue	\$ 1,154,046	\$ 1,205,396
Operating expenses:		
Network access expenses	107,092	109,398
Other operating expenses	528,926	541,499
Depreciation and amortization	281,407	303,675
Acquisition and integration costs	10,596	-
Total operating expenses	928,021	954,572
Operating income	226,025	250,824
Investment and other income, net	1,395	4,654
Interest expense	170,957	171,420
1	,	,
Income before income taxes	56,463	84,058
Income tax expense	17,189	33,275
Net income	39,274	50,783
Less: Income attributable to the noncontrolling		
interest in a partnership	-	2,643
Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier	\$ 39,274	\$ 48,140
	ψ 37,217	ψ τ0,1τ0
Basic and diluted net income per common share		
attributable to common shareholders of Frontier	\$ 0.04	\$ 0.05

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 AND 2013

(\$ in thousands)

(Unaudited)

	2014	2013
Net income Other comprehensive income, net of tax (see Note 13) Comprehensive income	\$ 39,274 3,039 42,313	\$ 50,783 6,746 57,529
Less: Income attributable to the noncontrolling interest in a partnership	-	(2,643)
Comprehensive income attributable to the common shareholders of Frontier	\$ 42,313	\$ 54,886

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013, THE NINE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

(\$ and shares in thousands)

(Unaudited)

Shareholders' Equity of Frontier

	onarenorae	10 Equity of	1 Tontier						, i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
			Additional		Accumulated Other	1			
	Common S	stock	Paid-In	Retained	Comprehens	Comprehensivereasury Stock			ollfiogal
	Shares	Amount	Capital	Earnings	Loss	Shares	Amount	Interest	Equity
Balance									
January 1, 2013	1,027,986	\$ 256,997	\$ 4,639,563	\$ 63,205	\$ (483,576)	(29,576)	\$ (368,593)	\$ 11,675	\$ 4,119
Stock plans	-	-	(3,094)	-	-	(279)	2,888	-	(206)
Dividends on									
common stock	-	-	(99,812)	-	-	-	-	-	(99,8
Net income	-	-	-	48,140	-	-	-	2,643	50,78
Other									
comprehensive									
income, net									
of tax	-	-	-	-	6,746	-	-	-	6,746
Distributions	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(6,400)	(6,40
Balance March									
31, 2013	1,027,986	256,997	4,536,657	111,345	(476,830)	(29,855)	(365,705)	7,918	4,070
Stock plans	-	-	(15,577)	-	-	1,331	27,555	-	11,97
Dividends on									
common stock	-	-	(200,024)	(99,932)	-	-	-	-	(299,
Net income	-	-	-	64,695	-	-	-	-	64,69
Pension									
settlement									
costs, net of tax	-	-	-	-	27,381	-	-	-	27,38

Other comprehensive income, net									
of tax	-	-	-	-	188,919	-	-	-	188,9
Distributions	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Sale of Mohave partnership									
interest	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(7,918)	(7,91
Balance									
December 31,									
2013	1,027,986	256,997	4,321,056	76,108	(260,530)	(28,524)	(338,150)	-	4,055
Stock plans	-	-	(39,345)	-	-	2,819	39,451	-	106
Dividends on									
common stock	-	-	(100,228)	-	-	-	-	-	(100,
Net income	-	-	-	39,274	-	-	-	-	39,27
Other comprehensive									
income, net									
of tax	-	-	-	-	3,039	-	-	-	3,039
Balance March		* * * * * * * *			*		* (********	+	
31, 2014	1,027,986	\$ 256,997	\$ 4,181,483	\$ 115,382	\$ (257,491)	(25,705)	\$ (298,699)	\$ -	\$ 3,997

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2014 AND 2013

(\$ in thousands)

(Unaudited)

	2014	2013
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:		
Net income	\$ 39,274	\$ 50,783
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by	. ,	. ,
operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization expense	281,407	303,675
Pension/OPEB costs	3,053	5,018
Stock based compensation expense	6,151	3,885
Other non-cash adjustments	10,140	1,710
Deferred income taxes	(22,479)	(10,133)
Change in accounts receivable	16,129	48,951
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities	(70,663)	(84,756)
Change in prepaid expenses, income taxes and other current assets	49,852	40,159
Net cash provided by operating activities	312,864	359,292
Cash flows provided from (used by) investing activities:		
Capital expenditures - Business operations	(135,059)	(189,009)
Capital expenditures - Integration activities	(10,348)	-
Network expansion funded by Connect America Fund	(6,380)	(1,815)
Grant funds received for network expansion from Connect America Fund	3,748	5,998
Cash transferred from (to) escrow	-	(11)
Other assets purchased and distributions received, net	14,217	528
Net cash used by investing activities	(133,822)	(184,309)
Cash flows provided from (used by) financing activities:		
Long-term debt borrowing	10,706	-
Long-term debt payments	(14,479)	(517,129)
Dividends paid	(100,228)	(99,812)

Repayment of customer advances for construction, distributions to noncontrolling interests and other	(839)	(7,279)
e	· · ·	
Net cash used by financing activities	(104,840)	(624,220)
(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents	74,202	(449,237)
Cash reclassed to assets held for sale	77,202	· · · ·
	-	(1,386)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1,	880,039	1,326,532
Cash and cash equivalents at March 31,	\$ 954,241	\$ 875,909
Supplemental cash flow information:		
Cash paid (received) during the period for:		
Interest	\$ 145,620	\$ 168,095
Income taxes (refunds), net	\$ (4,928)	\$ 947
meenie uixes (rerunds), net	φ (1,720)	Ψ

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates:

Frontier Communications Corporation and its subsidiaries are referred to as "we," "us," "our," "Frontier," or the "Company" in this report. Our interim unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. These interim unaudited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary, in the opinion of Frontier's management, to present fairly the results for the interim periods shown. Revenues, net income and cash flows for any interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the full year. For our interim financial statements as of and for the period ended March 31, 2014, we evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through the date that we filed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Frontier had a 33 % controlling general partner interest in a partnership entity, the Mohave Cellular Limited Partnership (Mohave). Mohave's results of operations were included in our consolidated financial statements through its date of disposal on April 1, 2013. The minority interest of the limited partners was reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as "Income attributable to the noncontrolling interest in a partnership." On April 1, 2013, the Company sold its partnership interest in Mohave and received proceeds of \$17.8 million. The Company recognized a gain on sale of approximately \$14.6 million before taxes in the second quarter of 2013.

The preparation of our interim financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and (iii) the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and judgments are used when accounting for revenue recognition, including the allowance for doubtful accounts, impairment of long-lived assets, intangible assets, depreciation and amortization, income taxes, contingencies, and pension and other postretirement benefits, among others. Certain information and footnote disclosures have been excluded and/or condensed pursuant to SEC rules and regulations.

(b) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized when services are provided or when products are delivered to customers. Revenue that is billed in advance includes: monthly recurring network access services (including data services), special access services and monthly recurring voice, video and related charges. The unearned portion of these fees is initially deferred as a component of "Advanced billings" on our consolidated balance sheet and recognized as revenue over the period that the services are provided. Revenue that is billed in arrears includes: non-recurring network access services (including data services), switched access services, non-recurring voice and video services. The earned but unbilled portion of these fees is recognized as revenue in our consolidated statements of operations and accrued in accounts receivable in the period that the services are provided. Excise taxes are recognized as a liability when billed. Installation fees and their related direct and incremental costs are initially deferred and recognized as revenue and expense over the average term of a customer relationship. We recognize as current period expense the portion of installation costs that exceeds installation fee revenue.

As required by law, the Company collects various taxes from its customers and subsequently remits these taxes to governmental authorities. Substantially all of these taxes are recorded through the consolidated balance sheet and presented on a net basis in our consolidated statements of operations. We also collect Universal Service Fund (USF) surcharges from customers (primarily federal USF) that we have recorded on a gross basis in our consolidated statements of operating expenses" of \$29.9 million and \$29.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(c) Goodwill and Other Intangibles:

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of identifiable tangible and intangible net assets acquired. We undertake studies to determine the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired and allocate purchase prices to assets and liabilities, including property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other identifiable intangibles. We annually (during the fourth quarter) or more frequently, if appropriate, examine the carrying value of our goodwill and trade name to determine whether there are any impairment losses. We test for goodwill impairment at the "operating segment" level, as that term is defined in U.S. GAAP. Our four operating segments consist of the following regions: Central, East, National and West. Our regional operating segments are aggregated into one reportable segment.

The Company amortizes finite-lived intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and reviews such intangible assets at least annually (during the fourth quarter) to assess whether any potential impairment exists and whether factors exist that would necessitate a change in useful life and a different amortization period.

(2) Recent Accounting Literature:

Internal Control – Integrated Framework

On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued its updated Internal Control – Integrated Framework (the 2013 Framework) and related illustrative documents. COSO will continue to make available its original Framework during the transition period extending to December 15, 2014. The Company currently utilizes COSO's original Framework, which was published in 1992 and is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing and conducting internal controls over external financial reporting and assessing its effectiveness. The 2013 Framework is expected to help organizations design and implement internal control in light of many changes in business and operating environments since the issuance of the original Framework, broaden the application of internal control in addressing operations and reporting objectives, and clarify the requirements for determining what constitutes effective internal control. We plan to adopt the 2013 Framework during 2014 and do not expect that it will have a significant impact on the Company.

(3) The Transactions:

The 2010 Transaction

On July 1, 2010, the Company acquired the defined assets and liabilities of the local exchange business and related landline activities of Verizon Communications Inc. (Verizon) in 14 states (the Acquired Territories), including Internet access and long distance services and broadband video provided to designated customers in the Acquired Territories (the 2010 Acquired Business). Frontier was considered the acquirer of the 2010 Acquired Business for accounting purposes. All integration activities for the 2010 Transaction were completed as of the end of 2012.

The AT&T Transaction

On December 17, 2013, the Company announced that it entered into an agreement to acquire the wireline properties of AT&T Inc. (AT&T) in Connecticut (the AT&T Transaction) for a purchase price of \$2.0 billion in cash, with adjustments for working capital. Upon completion of the AT&T Transaction, Frontier will operate AT&T's wireline business and fiber optic network that provides services to residential, commercial and wholesale customers in Connecticut. The Company will also acquire AT&T's U-verse® video and satellite TV customers in Connecticut.

The Company will account for the AT&T Transaction in accordance with the guidance included in ASC Topic 805. We incurred \$10.6 million of acquisition and integration related costs in connection with the AT&T Transaction during the three months ended March 31, 2014. Such costs are required to be expensed as incurred and are reflected in "Acquisition and integration costs" in our consolidated statements of operations.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(4) Accounts Receivable:

The components of accounts receivable, net are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	arch 31, 014	ecember 1, 2013
Retail and Wholesale	\$ 474,278	\$ 498,717
Other	58,897	51,855
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts	(70,094)	(71,362)
Accounts receivable, net	\$ 463,081	\$ 479,210

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based on our estimate of our ability to collect accounts receivable. Bad debt expense, which is recorded as a reduction to revenue, was \$12.9 million and \$16.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(5) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment, net is as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	March 31, 2014	December 31, 2013
Property, plant and equipment Less: Accumulated depreciation Property, plant and equipment, net	 \$ 14,984,356 (7,794,098) \$ 7,190,258 	<pre>\$ 14,850,697 (7,594,935) \$ 7,255,762</pre>

Depreciation expense is principally based on the composite group method. Depreciation expense was \$205.5 million and \$216.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As a result of an independent study of the estimated remaining useful lives of our plant assets, we adopted new estimated remaining useful lives for certain plant assets as of October 1, 2013, with an immaterial impact to depreciation expense.

(6) Goodwill and Other Intangibles:

The components of goodwill by the reporting units in effect as of both March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)

Central	\$ 1,815,498
East	2,003,574
National	1,218,113
West	1,300,534
Total Goodwill	\$ 6,337,719

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

The components of other intangibles are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	March 31, 20 Gross Carrying Amount	14 Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Amount	December 31, Gross Carrying Amount	2013 Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Amount
Other Intangibles:						
Customer base	\$ 2,427,648	\$ (1,412,743)	\$ 1,014,905	\$ 2,427,648	\$ (1,336,852)	\$ 1,090,796
Trade name and license	124,136	-	124,136	124,136	-	124,136
Total other intangibles	\$ 2,551,784	\$ (1,412,743)	\$ 1,139,041	\$ 2,551,784	\$ (1,336,852)	\$ 1,214,932

Amortization expense was \$75.9 million and \$87.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amortization expense represents the amortization of intangible assets (primarily customer base) that were acquired in the 2010 Transaction based on a useful life of nine years for the residential customer base and 12 years for the business customer base, amortized on an accelerated method.

(7) Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and estimated fair values for long-term debt at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. For the other financial instruments including cash, accounts receivable, long-term debt due within one year, accounts payable and other current liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the relatively short maturities of those instruments. Other equity method investments, for which market values are not readily available, are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated based upon quoted market prices at the reporting date for those financial instruments.

(\$ in thousands)	March 31, 20	14	December 31	, 2013
	Carrying Amount	Fair Value	Carrying Amount	Fair Value
Long-term debt	\$ 7,762,672	\$ 8,343,979	\$ 7,873,667	\$ 8,191,744

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(8) Long-Term Debt:

The activity in our long-term debt from December 31, 2013 to March 31, 2014 is summarized as follows:

		Three month	s ended		
		March 31, 20)14		Interest
					Rate at
	December 31,	Payments	New	March 31,	March 31,
(\$ in thousands)	2013	and Retirements	Borrowings	2014	2014 *
Senior Unsecured Debt	\$ 8,107,066	\$ (14,375)	\$ -	\$ 8,092,691	7.95%
Other Secured Debt	13,550	-	10,706	24,256	3.54%
Rural Utilities Service Loan Contracts	8,930	(104)	-	8,826	6.15%
Total Long-Term Debt	\$ 8,129,546	\$ (14,479)	\$ 10,706	\$ 8,125,773	7.94%
Less: Debt (Discount)/Premium Less: Current Portion	2,037 (257,916)			2,524 (365,625)	
	\$ 7,873,667			\$ 7,762,672	

* Interest rate includes amortization of debt issuance costs and debt premiums or discounts. The interest rates at March 31, 2014 represent a weighted average of multiple issuances

•

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Additional information regarding our Senior Unsecured Debt is as follows:

(\$ in thousands)

March 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

	st Principal Interest
Outstanding Rate	Outstanding Rate
Senior Notes and Debentures Due:	
5/1/2014 200,000 8.250%	% 200,000 8.250%
3/15/2015 105,026 6.625%	% 105,026 6.625%
4/15/2015 96,872 7.8759	% 96,872 7.875%
10/14/2016 * 445,625 3.0359	% (Variable) 460,000 3.045% (Variable)
4/15/2017 606,874 8.2509	% 606,874 8.250%
10/1/2018 582,739 8.1259	% 582,739 8.125%
3/15/2019 434,000 7.1259	% 434,000 7.125%
4/15/2020 1,021,505 8.5009	% 1,021,505 8.500%
7/1/2021 500,000 9.2509	% 500,000 9.250%
4/15/2022 500,000 8.7509	% 500,000 8.750%
1/15/2023 850,000 7.1259	% 850,000 7.125%
4/15/2024 750,000 7.6259	% 750,000 7.625%
11/1/2025 138,000 7.0009	% 138,000 7.000%
8/15/2026 1,739 6.8009	% 1,739 6.800%
1/15/2027 345,858 7.8759	% 345,858 7.875%
8/15/2031 945,325 9.0009	% 945,325 9.000%
10/1/2034 628 7.6809	% 628 7.680%
7/1/2035 125,000 7.4509	% 125,000 7.450%
10/1/2046 193,500 7.0509	% 193,500 7.050%
7,842,691	7,857,066

Subsidiary Senior Notes and Debentures Due:

2/15/2028	200,000	6.730%	200,000	6.730%
10/15/2029	50,000	8.400%	50,000	8.400%
Total	\$ 8,092,691	7.79% **	\$ 8,107,066	7.78% **

* Represents borrowings under the Credit Agreement with CoBank.

** Interest rate represents a weighted average of the stated interest rates of multiple issuances.

During the first three months of 2014, we entered into secured financings totaling \$10.7 million with four year terms and no stated interest rate for certain equipment purchases.

On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment letter for a bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facility) and recognized interest expense related to this commitment of \$7.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014. On January 29, 2014, we entered into a bridge loan agreement (the Bridge Loan Agreement) with the Lenders party thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, pursuant to which the Lenders have agreed at closing of the AT&T Transaction to provide to us an unsecured bridge loan facility for up to \$1.9 billion for the purposes of funding (i) substantially all of the purchase price for the AT&T Transaction and (ii) the fees and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated by the stock purchase agreement for the AT&T Transaction. Pursuant to the Bridge Loan Agreement, if and to the extent we do not, or are unable to, issue debt securities yielding up to \$1.9 billion in gross cash proceeds on or prior to the closing of the AT&T Transaction, we shall draw down up to \$1.9 billion, less the amount of the debt securities, if any, issued by us on or prior to the closing of the AT&T Transaction, in aggregate principal amount of loans under the Bridge Facility to fund the purchase price of the AT&T Transaction.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the other lenders party thereto, for a \$575.0 million senior unsecured term loan facility with a final maturity of October 14, 2016 (the Credit Agreement). The entire facility was drawn upon execution of the Credit Agreement in October 2011. Repayment of the outstanding principal balance is made in quarterly installments in the amount of \$14.4 million, which commenced on March 31, 2012, with the remaining outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the final maturity date. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of the Company. Interest rate margins under the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustments based on the Total Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such term is defined in the Credit Agreement. The current pricing on this facility is LIBOR plus 2.875%.

The Company has a revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the lenders party thereto and the other parties named therein (the Revolving Credit Agreement), for a \$750.0 million revolving credit facility (the Revolving Credit Facility) with a scheduled termination date of November 3, 2016. As of March 31, 2014, no borrowings had been made under the Revolving Credit Facility. Associated commitment fees under the Revolving Credit Facility will vary from time to time depending on the Company's debt rating (as defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement) and were 0.400% per annum as of March 31, 2014. During the term of the Revolving Credit Facility, the Company may borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may obtain letters of credit, subject to customary borrowing conditions. Loans under the Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest based on the alternate base rate or the adjusted LIBO Rate (each as determined in the Revolving Credit Agreement), at the Company's debt rating (ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base rate borrowings and 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO Rate borrowings). The current pricing on this facility would have been 1.00% or 2.00%, respectively, as of March 31, 2014. Letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit Facility will also be subject to fees that vary depending on the Company's debt rating. The Revolving Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes but may not be used to fund dividend payments.

As of March 31, 2014, we were in compliance with all of our debt and credit facility financial covenants.

Our principal payments for the next five years are as follows as of March 31, 2014:

(\$ in thousands)	Principal Payments
2014 (remaining nine months) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019	 \$ 245,445 \$ 262,517 \$ 348,143 \$ 610,052 \$ 583,942 \$ 434,565

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(9) Income Taxes:

The following is a reconciliation of the provision for income taxes computed at federal statutory rates to the effective rates:

	For the three months ended March 31,	
	2014	2013
Consolidated tax provision at federal statutory rate State income tax provisions, net of federal income	35.0 %	35.0 %
tax benefit	0.3	3.6
Noncontrolling interest	-	(0.4)
Tax reserve adjustment	-	0.4
Changes in certain deferred tax balances	(5.1)	-
All other, net	0.2	1.0
Effective tax rate	30.4 %	39.6 %

Income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2014 include the impact of a \$2.9 million benefit arising from state tax law changes.

The amount of our uncertain tax positions for which the statutes of limitations are expected to expire during the next twelve months and which would affect our effective tax rate is \$2.9 million as of March 31, 2014.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(10) Net Income Per Common Share:

The reconciliation of the net income per common share calculation is as follows:

(\$ and shares in thousands, except per share amounts)	For the three ended March 31,	months
Net income used for basic and diluted earnings per common share:	2014	2013
Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted stock awards Total basic and diluted net income attributable to common	\$ 39,274 (767)	\$ 48,140 (521)
shareholders of Frontier	\$ 38,507	\$ 47,619
Basic earnings per common share: Total weighted average shares and unvested restricted stock awards outstanding - basic Less: Weighted average unvested restricted stock awards Total weighted average shares outstanding - basic	1,000,960 (6,934) 994,026	998,146 (6,273) 991,873
Basic net income per share attributable to common shareholders of Frontier	\$ 0.04	\$ 0.05
Diluted earnings per common share: Total weighted average shares outstanding - basic Effect of dilutive shares Total weighted average shares outstanding - diluted	994,026 1,502 995,528	991,873 675 992,548

Table of Contents

Diluted net income per share attributable to common		
shareholders of Frontier	\$ 0.04	\$ 0.05

Stock Options

For the three months ended March 31, 2014, options to purchase 83,000 shares (at exercise prices ranging from \$12.50 to \$14.15) and for the three months ended March 31, 2013, options to purchase 526,000 shares (at exercise prices ranging from \$10.44 to \$14.15), issuable under employee compensation plans were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share (EPS) for those periods because the exercise prices were greater than the average market price of our common stock and, therefore, the effect would be antidilutive. In calculating diluted EPS, we apply the treasury stock method and include future unearned compensation as part of the assumed proceeds.

Stock Units

At March 31, 2014 and 2013, we had 1,314,113 and 949,412 stock units, respectively, issued under our Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Fee Equity Plan (Deferred Fee Plan) and the Non-Employee Directors' Equity Incentive Plan (Directors' Equity Plan). These securities have not been included in the diluted income per share of common stock calculation for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 because their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect.

(11) Stock Plans:

At March 31, 2014, we had six stock-based compensation plans under which grants were made and awards remained outstanding. No further awards may be granted under four of the plans: the 1996 Equity Incentive Plan (the 1996 EIP), the Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2000 EIP), the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 EIP) and the Deferred Fee Plan. At March 31, 2014, there were 22,540,761 shares authorized for grant and 14,543,220 shares available for grant under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2013 EIP and together with the 1996 EIP, the 2000 EIP and the 2009

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

EIP, the EIPs) and the Directors' Equity Plan. Our general policy is to issue shares from treasury upon the grant of restricted shares and the exercise of options.

Performance Shares

On February 15, 2012, the Company's Compensation Committee, in consultation with the other non-management directors of the Company's Board of Directors and the Committee's independent executive compensation consultant, adopted the Frontier Long-Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP). LTIP awards are granted in the form of performance shares. The LTIP is currently offered under the Company's 2009 EIP and 2013 EIP, and participants consist of senior vice presidents and above. The LTIP awards have performance, market and time-vesting conditions.

Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of a three-year performance period (a Measurement Period), a target number of performance shares are awarded to each LTIP participant with respect to the Measurement Period. The performance metrics under the LTIP are (1) annual targets for operating cash flow based on a goal set during the first 90 days of each year in the three-year Measurement Period and (2) an overall performance "modifier" set during the first 90 days of the Measurement Period, based on the Company's total return to stockholders (i.e., Total Shareholder Return or TSR) relative to the Integrated Telecommunications Services Group (GICS Code 50101020) for the three-year Measurement Period. Operating cash flow performance is determined at the end of each year and the annual results will be averaged at the end of the three-year Measurement Period to determine the preliminary number of shares earned under the LTIP award. The TSR performance measure is then applied to decrease or increase payouts based on the Company's three year relative TSR performance. LTIP awards, to the extent earned, will be paid out in the form of common stock shortly following the end of the three-year Measurement Period.

In 2012, the Compensation Committee granted approximately 979,000 performance shares under the LTIP and set the operating cash flow performance goal for the first year in the 2012-2014 Measurement Period and the TSR modifier for the three-year Measurement Period. In 2013, the Compensation Committee granted approximately 1,124,000 performance shares under the LTIP and set the operating cash flow performance goal for 2013, which applies to the first year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Period and the second year of the 2012-2014 Measurement Period. On February 17, 2014, the Compensation Committee granted 1,028,000 performance shares under the LTIP and set the operating cash flow performance shares under the LTIP and set the operating cash flow performance shares under the LTIP and set the number of the 2013-2015 Measurement Period and the third year of the 2012-2014 Measurement Period, the second year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Period. The number of shares of common stock earned at the end of each three-year Measurement Period may be more or less than the number of target performance shares granted as a result of operating cash flow and TSR performance. An

executive must maintain a satisfactory performance rating during the Measurement Period and must be employed by the Company at the end of the three-year Measurement Period in order for the award to vest. The Compensation Committee will determine the number of shares earned for each three year Measurement Period in February of the year following the end of the Measurement Period.

The following summary presents information regarding LTIP target performance shares as of March 31, 2014 and changes during the three months then ended with regard to LTIP shares awarded under the 2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP:

	Number of
	Shares
Balance at January 1, 2014	1,749,000
LTIP target performance shares granted	1,028,000
LTIP target performance shares forfeited	-
Balance at March 31, 2014	2,777,000

For the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized an expense of \$1.0 million and \$0.3 million, respectively, for the LTIP.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Restricted Stock

The following summary presents information regarding unvested restricted stock as of March 31, 2014 and changes during the three months then ended with regard to restricted stock under the 2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP:

		Weighted		
		Average		
	Number of	Sumber of Grant		
	Number of	Date	Aggregate	
	Shares	Fair Value	Fair Value	
Balance at January 1, 2014	6,234,000	\$ 4.80	\$ 28,988,000	
Restricted stock granted	3,741,000	\$ 4.71	\$ 21,359,000	
Restricted stock vested	(2,254,000)	\$ 5.25	\$ 12,867,000	
Restricted stock forfeited	(57,000)	\$ 4.50		
Balance at March 31, 2014	7,664,000	\$ 4.63	\$ 43,764,000	

For purposes of determining compensation expense, the fair value of each restricted stock grant is estimated based on the average of the high and low market price of a share of our common stock on the date of grant. Total remaining unrecognized compensation cost associated with unvested restricted stock awards at March 31, 2014 was \$33.5 million and the weighted average period over which this cost is expected to be recognized is approximately two years.

Shares granted during the first three months of 2013 totaled 521,000. The total fair value of shares granted and vested at March 31, 2013 was approximately \$2.1 million and \$7.2 million, respectively. The total fair value of unvested restricted stock at March 31, 2013 was \$21.3 million. The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted shares granted during the three months ended March 31, 2013 was \$4.09.

We have granted restricted stock awards to employees in the form of our common stock. None of the restricted stock awards may be sold, assigned, pledged or otherwise transferred, voluntarily or involuntarily, by the employees until the restrictions lapse, subject to limited exceptions. The restrictions are time-based. Compensation expense, recognized in "Other operating expenses", of \$4.4 million and \$3.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, has been recorded in connection with these grants.

Stock Options

The following summary presents information regarding outstanding stock options as of March 31, 2014 and changes during the three months then ended with regard to options under the EIPs:

		Weighted	Weighted	
	Shares	Average	Average	Aggregate
	Subject to	Option Price	Remaining	Intrinsic
	Option	Per Share	Life in Years	Value
Balance at January 1, 2014	83,000	\$ 13.23	1.8	\$ -
Options granted	-	\$ -		
Options exercised	-	\$ -		
Options canceled, forfeited or lapsed	-	\$ -		
Balance at March 31, 2014	83,000	\$ 13.23	1.6	\$ -
Exercisable at March 31, 2014	83,000	\$ 13.23	1.6	\$ -

There were no stock options granted during the first three months of 2013. There was no intrinsic value for the stock options outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2013.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(12) Segment Information:

We operate in one reportable segment. Frontier provides both regulated and unregulated voice, data and video services to residential, business and wholesale customers and is typically the incumbent voice services provider in its service areas.

As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we have utilized the aggregation criteria to combine our operating segments because all of our Frontier properties share similar economic characteristics, in that they provide the same products and services to similar customers using comparable technologies in all of the states in which we operate. The regulatory structure is generally similar. Differences in the regulatory regime of a particular state do not materially impact the economic characteristics or operating results of a particular property.

(13) Comprehensive Income:

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains and losses affecting shareholders' investment and pension/postretirement benefit (OPEB) liabilities that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded from net income.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax at March 31, 2014 and 2013, and changes for the three months then ended, are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	Pension	OPEB	Deferred	All	Total
	Costs	Costs	taxes on	other	
			pension		

			and OPEB		
			costs		
Balance at January 1, 2014	\$ (411,432)	\$ (5,230)	\$ 156,280	\$ (148)	\$ (260,530)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications	-	-	-	148	148
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other					
comprehensive loss	4,830	(168)	(1,771)	-	2,891
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss)	4,830	(168)	(1,771)	148	3,039
Balance at March 31, 2014	\$ (406,602)	\$ (5,398)	\$ 154,509	\$ -	\$ (257,491)

	Pension	OPEB	Deferred taxes on pension and OPEB	All	
(\$ in thousands)	Costs	Costs	costs	other	Total
Balance at January 1, 2013	\$ (697,874)	\$ (74,264)	\$ 288,712	\$ (150)	\$ (483,576)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications	(229)	-	293	-	64
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other					
comprehensive loss	10,074	703	(4,095)	-	6,682
Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss)	9,845	703	(3,802)	-	6,746
Balance at March 31, 2013	\$ (688,029)	\$ (73,561)	\$ 284,910	\$ (150)	\$ (476,830)

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

The significant items reclassified from each component of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	from Accumula	Reclassified ated Other ensive Loss	
Details about Accumulated Other	For the the	ree months	
Comprehensive	ended Ma	rch 31,	Affected Line Item in the Statement Where
Loss Components	2014	2013	Net Income is Presented
Amortization of Pension Cost Items (b)			
Prior-service costs	\$ (11)	\$ (2)	
Actuarial gains/(losses)	(4,819)	(10,072)	
	(4,830)	(10,074)	Income before income taxes
Tax impact	1,835	3,828	Income tax (expense) benefit
-	\$ (2,995)	\$ (6,246)	Net income
Amortization of OPEB Cost Items (b)			
Prior-service costs	\$ 890	\$ 1,525	
Actuarial gains/(losses)	(722)	(2,228)	
	168	(703)	Income before income taxes
Tax impact	(64)	267	Income tax (expense) benefit
*	\$ 104	\$ (436)	Net income
(a) Amounts in parentheses indicate losses			

(a) Amounts in parentheses indicate losses.

(b) These accumulated other comprehensive loss components are included in the computation of net periodic pension and OPEB costs (see Note 14 - Retirement Plans for additional details).

(14) Retirement Plans:

The following tables provide the components of net periodic benefit cost:

	Pension Benefits For the three months ended March 31,		
	2014	2013	
(\$ in thousands)			
Components of net periodic pension benefit cost			
Service cost	\$ 9,940	\$ 12,834	
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	19,824	18,880	
Expected return on plan assets	(23,512)	(24,590)	
Amortization of prior service cost /(credit)	11	2	
Amortization of unrecognized loss	4,819	10,072	
Net periodic pension benefit cost	\$ 11,082	\$ 17,198	

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

	Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) For the three months ended March 31,	
	2014	2013
(\$ in thousands)		
Components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost		
Service cost	\$ 2,553	\$ 3,179
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	4,788	4,440
Expected return on plan assets	(7)	(43)
Amortization of prior service cost/(credit)	(890)	(1,525)
Amortization of unrecognized loss	722	2,228
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost	\$ 7,166	\$ 8,279

During the first three months of 2014 and 2013, we capitalized \$3.9 million and \$4.9 million, respectively, of pension and OPEB expense into the cost of our capital expenditures, as the costs relate to our engineering and plant construction activities. Based on current assumptions and plan asset values, we estimate that our 2014 pension and OPEB expenses will be approximately \$65 million to \$85 million for our current business operations, excluding amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures, as compared to \$97.1 million in 2013, excluding the impact of pension settlement costs and amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures. We made total cash contributions to our pension plan during the three months ended March 31, 2014 of \$11.6 million. An additional cash contribution of \$19.6 million was made on April 15, 2014. We expect that we will make contributions of cash and/or other assets to our pension plan of approximately \$100 million in 2014.

The Company's pension plan assets have increased from \$1,216.5 million at December 31, 2013 to \$1,229.5 million at March 31, 2014, an increase of \$13.0 million, or 1%. This increase is a result of positive investment returns of \$40.3

million and cash contributions of \$11.6 million, offset by benefit payments of \$38.9 million during the first three months of 2014.

(15) Commitments and Contingencies:

We anticipate total capital expenditures for our current business operations of approximately \$575 million to \$625 million for 2014, excluding the expenditure of funds previously received from the Connect America Fund program. Although we from time to time make short-term purchasing commitments to vendors with respect to these expenditures, we generally do not enter into firm, written contracts for such activities.

In connection with the pending AT&T Transaction, the Company currently expects to incur operating expenses and capital expenditures of approximately \$225 million to \$275 million in 2014 related to integration initiatives. The Company incurred \$10.6 million of operating expenses, consisting of \$1.6 million and \$9.0 million of acquisition and integration costs, respectively, and \$10.3 million in capital expenditures related to the AT&T Transaction during the three months ended March 31, 2014.

In connection with the 2010 Transaction, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and certain state regulatory commissions, in connection with granting their approvals of the 2010 Transaction, specified certain capital expenditure and operating requirements for the Acquired Territories for specified periods of time post-closing. These requirements focus primarily on certain capital investment commitments to expand broadband availability to at least 85% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 megabits per second (Mbps) by the end of 2013. We are required to provide download speeds of 4 Mbps to at least 75%, 80% and 85% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, we met our FCC requirement to provide 3 Mbps coverage to 85% of the households in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013. We also met our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps coverage to 80% of the households in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013. We also met our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps coverage to 80% of the households in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2014. As of March 31, 2014, we expanded broadband availability in excess of 4 Mbps to 83.6% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investment commitments to three state regulatory commissions, we placed a total of \$115.0 million in cash into escrow accounts and obtained a letter of credit for \$190 million in 2010. Another \$72.4 million of cash in an escrow account was acquired in connection with the 2010 Transaction to be used for service quality initiatives in the state of West Virginia. As of March 31, 2014, \$176.3 million had been released from the escrow accounts and the Company had a restricted cash balance in the remaining escrow account in the aggregate amount of \$11.4 million, including interest earned. The aggregate amount of this escrow account will continue to decrease over time as we make the required capital expenditures in West Virginia. In September 2013, the letter of credit for the remaining \$20 million expired.

In our normal course of business, we have obligations under certain non-cancelable arrangements for services. During 2012, we entered into a "take or pay" arrangement for the purchase of future long distance and carrier services. Our remaining commitments under the arrangement are \$145.5 million and \$140.8 million for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of March 31, 2014, we expect to utilize the services included within the arrangement and no liability for the "take or pay" provision has been recorded.

We are party to various legal proceedings (including individual, class and putative class actions) arising in the normal course of our business covering a wide range of matters and types of claims including, but not limited to, general contracts, billing disputes, rights of access, taxes and surcharges, consumer protection, trademark and patent infringement, employment, regulatory, tort, claims of competitors and disputes with other carriers.

We accrue an expense for pending litigation when we determine that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Legal defense costs are expensed as incurred. None of our existing accruals, after considering insurance coverage, for pending matters is material. We constantly monitor our pending litigation for the purpose of adjusting our accruals and revising our disclosures accordingly, when required. Litigation is, however, subject to uncertainty, and the outcome of any particular matter is not predictable. We will vigorously defend our interests for pending litigation, and as of this date, we believe that the ultimate resolution of all such matters, after considering insurance coverage or other indemnities to which we are entitled, will not have a material

adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or our cash flows.

We sold all of our utility businesses as of April 1, 2004. However, we have retained a potential payment obligation associated with our previous electric utility activities in the State of Vermont. The Vermont Joint Owners (VJO), a consortium of 14 Vermont utilities, including us, entered into a purchase power agreement with Hydro-Quebec in 1987. The agreement contains "step-up" provisions that state if any VJO member defaults on its purchase obligation under the contract to purchase power from Hydro-Quebec, then the other VJO participants will assume responsibility for the defaulting party's share on a pro-rata basis. Our pro-rata share of the purchase power obligation is 10%. If any member of the VJO defaults on its obligations under the Hydro-Quebec agreement, then the remaining members of the VJO, including us, may be required to pay for a substantially larger share of the VJO's total purchase power obligation for the remainder of the agreement (which runs through 2015). U.S. GAAP rules require that we disclose "the maximum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) the guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee." U.S. GAAP rules also state that we must make such disclosure "... even if the likelihood of the guarantor's having to make any payments under the guarantee is remote..." As noted above, our obligation only arises as a result of default by another VJO member, such as upon bankruptcy. Therefore, to satisfy the "maximum potential amount" disclosure requirement we must assume that all members of the VJO simultaneously default, an unlikely scenario given that all VJO members are regulated utility providers with regulated cost recovery. Despite the remote chance that such an event could occur, or that the State of Vermont could or would allow such an event, assuming that all the members of the VJO defaulted on January 1, 2014 and remained in default for the duration of the contract (another 2 years), we estimate that our undiscounted purchase obligation for 2014 through 2015 would be approximately \$287.4 million. In such a scenario, the Company would then own the power and could seek to recover its costs. We would do this by seeking to recover our costs from the defaulting members and/or reselling the power to other utility providers or the northeast power grid. There is an active market for the sale of power. We could potentially lose money if we were unable to sell the power at cost. We caution that we cannot predict with any degree of certainty any potential outcome.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in the statements. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such as "believe," "anticipate," "expect" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements (including oral representations) are only predictions or statements of current plans, which we review continuously. Forward-looking statements may differ from actual future results due to, but not limited to, and our future results may be materially affected by, the following potential risks or uncertainties. You should understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all potential risks or uncertainties. We note the following as a partial list:

- Our ability to complete the acquisition of the Connecticut operations from AT&T;
- The ability to successfully integrate the Connecticut operations of AT&T into our existing operations;
- The risk that the cost savings from the AT&T Transaction may not be fully realized or may take longer to realize than expected;
- The sufficiency of the assets to be acquired from AT&T to enable the combined company to operate the acquired business;
- Failure to enter into or obtain, or delays in entering into or obtaining, certain agreements and consents necessary to operate the acquired business as planned;
- The failure to obtain, delays in obtaining or adverse conditions contained in any required regulatory approvals for the AT&T Transaction;

- The effects of increased expenses incurred due to activities related to the AT&T Transaction;
- Disruption from the AT&T Transaction making it more difficult to maintain relationships with customers or suppliers;
- The effects of greater than anticipated competition from cable, wireless and other wireline carriers that could require us to implement new pricing, marketing strategies or new product or service offerings and the risk that we will not respond on a timely or profitable basis;
- Reductions in the number of our voice customers that we cannot offset with increases in broadband subscribers and sales of other products and services;
- · Our ability to maintain relationships with customers, employees or suppliers;
- The effects of ongoing changes in the regulation of the communications industry as a result of federal and state legislation and regulation, or changes in the enforcement or interpretation of such legislation and regulation;
- The effects of any unfavorable outcome with respect to any current or future legal, governmental or regulatory proceedings, audits or disputes;
- The effects of changes in the availability of federal and state universal service funding or other subsidies to us and our competitors;
- · Our ability to successfully adjust to changes in the communications industry and to implement strategies for growth;
- · Continued reductions in switched access revenues as a result of regulation, competition or technology substitutions;

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

- · Our ability to effectively manage service quality in our territories and meet mandated service quality metrics;
- Our ability to successfully introduce new product offerings, including our ability to offer bundled service packages on terms that are both profitable to us and attractive to customers;
- The effects of changes in accounting policies or practices adopted voluntarily or as required by generally accepted accounting principles or regulations;
- Our ability to effectively manage our operations, operating expenses and capital expenditures, and to repay, reduce or refinance our debt;
- The effects of changes in both general and local economic conditions on the markets that we serve, which can affect demand for our products and services, customer purchasing decisions, collectability of revenues and required levels of capital expenditures related to new construction of residences and businesses;
- The effects of technological changes and competition on our capital expenditures, products and service offerings, including the lack of assurance that our network improvements in speed and capacity will be sufficient to meet or exceed the capabilities and quality of competing networks;
- The effects of increased medical expenses (including as a result of the impact of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act) and pension and postemployment expenses, such as retiree medical and severance costs, and related funding requirements;
- · The effects of changes in income tax rates, tax laws, regulations or rulings, or federal or state tax assessments;
- Our ability to successfully renegotiate union contracts;
- Changes in pension plan assumptions and/or the value of our pension plan assets, which could require us to make increased contributions to the pension plan in 2014 and beyond;
- The effects of economic downturns which could result in difficulty in collection of revenues and loss of customers;

- Adverse changes in the credit markets or in the ratings given to our debt securities by nationally accredited ratings organizations, which could limit or restrict the availability, or increase the cost, of financing to us;
- Our cash flow from operations, amount of capital expenditures, debt service requirements, cash paid for income taxes and liquidity may affect our payment of dividends on our common shares;
- The effects of state regulatory cash management practices that could limit our ability to transfer cash among our subsidiaries or dividend funds up to the parent company; and
- The effects of severe weather events such as hurricanes, tornadoes, ice storms or other natural or man-made disasters, which may increase our operating expenses or adversely impact customer revenue.

Any of the foregoing events, or other events, could cause financial information to vary from management's forward-looking statements included in this report. You should consider these important factors in evaluating any statement in this report on Form 10-Q or otherwise made by us or on our behalf. The following information is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included in this report. We have no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements and do not undertake to do so.

Investors should also be aware that while we do, at various times, communicate with securities analysts, it is against our policy to disclose to them selectively any material non-public information or other confidential information. Accordingly, investors should not assume that we agree with any statement or report issued by an analyst irrespective of the content of the statement or report. To the extent that reports issued by securities analysts contain any projections, forecasts or opinions, such reports are not our responsibility.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Overview

See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report for a discussion of The Transactions.

The Company is the largest communications company providing services predominantly to rural areas and small and medium-sized towns and cities in the United States. The Company currently operates in 27 states and will also operate in Connecticut after consummation of the AT&T Transaction. The Company is the nation's fourth largest Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier (ILEC), with 3.1 million customers, 1.9 million broadband connections and 13,700 employees as of March 31, 2014.

Regulatory Developments

In October 2009, the FCC issued a proposed rulemaking looking at rules to "Preserve a Free and Open Internet," (i.e., net neutrality), including a reconsideration of the legal classification of broadband and proposed restrictions on broadband network management practices. On December 21, 2010, the FCC adopted an order imposing some regulations on Internet service providers. These regulations affect fixed and mobile broadband providers differently. These regulations became effective November 20, 2011, and we are in compliance with these regulations. On January 14, 2014, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit vacated the portions of the FCC's rules that prohibited blocking and required non-discriminatory treatment. The Chairman of the FCC has stated his intention to preserve the spirit of the vacated rules. The D.C. Circuit's ruling may be appealed or the FCC may take other regulatory actions to implement "Open Internet" policies. The future state of these regulations and their effect on us is unknown.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted an Order to reform the Federal Universal Service High-Cost Fund (USF) and Intercarrier Compensation (the Order). The Order changed how federal subsidies are calculated and disbursed, with these changes being phased-in beginning in July 2012. These changes transition the USF, which supports voice services in high-cost areas, to the Connect America Fund (CAF), which supports broadband deployment in high-cost areas. CAF Phase I, implemented in 2012, provided for ongoing USF support for price cap carriers capped at the 2011 amount. In addition, the FCC in the first round of CAF Phase I made available for price cap ILECs an additional \$300 million in incremental high-cost broadband support to be used for broadband deployment to unserved areas. In 2012 and early 2013, we received \$71.9 million in CAF Phase I funds and initially recorded such funds as increases to Cash and Other liabilities in the balance sheet. The \$71.9 million in the first round of CAF Phase I support is expected to enable an incremental 92,877 households for broadband service and was accounted for as Contributions in Aid of Construction. We are required to implement, spend and enable these 92,877 households no later than July 24, 2015.

We spent \$6.4 million of these CAF funds on network expansion during the first quarter of 2014 and \$44.0 million of the CAF funds to date through March 31, 2014, enabling 70,000 households.

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report and Order authorizing a second round of CAF Phase I. As part of this May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC expanded the areas eligible for funding to include those that lack service of 3Mbps download and 768 kbps upload. In 2013, Frontier applied for funds from the second round of CAF Phase I and in December 2013 the FCC awarded \$57.6 million to us to serve 94,899 locations in our high-cost, unserved and underserved areas across multiple states. The FCC also announced on January 10, 2014, that Frontier was eligible for an additional \$3.7 million in funding to serve 6,815 locations. We received these funds in February 2014. The second round of CAF Phase I includes certain accompanying spending requirements from the Company, and our capital expenditure plans take this into account. The CAF funds received are accounted for as Contributions in Aid of Construction and were initially recorded as increases to Cash and Other liabilities on the balance sheet.

The Order also reformed Intercarrier Compensation, which is the payment framework that governs how carriers compensate each other for the exchange of interstate traffic, and it began a multi-year transition in July 2012, with the second step implemented in July 2013. The transition will move terminating traffic to a near zero rate by 2017. Frontier expects to be able to recover a significant portion of those revenues through end user rates and other replacement support mechanisms. The Order has been challenged by certain parties in court and certain parties have also petitioned the FCC to reconsider various aspects of the Order. Accordingly, we cannot predict the long-term impact at this time but believe that the Order will provide a stable regulatory framework to facilitate our ongoing focus on the deployment of broadband into our rural markets.

Effective December 29, 2011, the Order required providers to pay interstate access rates for the termination of VoIP toll traffic. On April 25, 2012, the FCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specified that changes to originating access rates for VoIP traffic will not be implemented until July 2014. The Order has been challenged by certain parties in court and certain

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

parties have also petitioned the FCC to reconsider various aspects of the Order. The net impact of the Order during the period from July 2012 through March 2014 was immaterial.

Certain states also have their own open proceedings to address reform to intrastate access charges and other intercarrier compensation and state universal service funds. Although the FCC has pre-empted state jurisdiction on most access charges, many states could consider moving forward with their proceedings. We cannot predict when or how these matters will be decided or the effect on our subsidy or switched access revenues.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

The following should be read in conjunction with Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

(a) Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2014, we had cash and cash equivalents aggregating \$954.2 million, excluding total restricted cash, primarily representing funds escrowed for future broadband expansion and service quality initiatives, of \$13.4 million. Our primary source of funds continued to be cash generated from operations. For the three months ended March 31, 2014, we used cash flow from operations, cash on hand and debt proceeds to fund principally all of our cash investing and financing activities, primarily capital expenditures, dividends and debt repayments.

We have a revolving credit facility with a line of credit of \$750.0 million that we believe provides sufficient flexibility to meet our liquidity needs. As of March 31, 2014, we had not made any borrowings under this facility.

At March 31, 2014, we had a working capital surplus of \$267.5 million. We believe our operating cash flows, existing cash balances, and existing revolving credit facility will be adequate to finance our working capital requirements, fund capital expenditures, make required debt payments, pay taxes, pay dividends to our stockholders, and support our short-term and long-term operating strategies for the next twelve months. However, a number of factors, including but not limited to, losses of customers, pricing pressure from increased competition, lower subsidy and switched access revenues, and the impact of the current economic environment may negatively impact our cash generated from operations. In addition, based on information available to us, we believe that the financial institutions syndicated under our revolving credit facility would be able to fulfill their commitments to us, but this could change in the future. As of March 31, 2014, we had \$245.4 million of debt maturing during the last nine months of 2014; \$262.5 million and \$348.1 million of debt will mature in 2015 and 2016, respectively.

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities declined \$46.4 million, or 13%, for the three months ended March 31, 2014, as compared with the prior year period. The decrease was primarily the result of lower revenue and net income before depreciation and amortization.

We received \$4.9 million in cash tax refunds during the first three months of 2014 as compared to \$0.9 million in net cash taxes paid during the first three months of 2013. Our 2013 cash taxes paid reflected the continued impact of bonus depreciation in accordance with the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012. Absent any legislative changes, we expect that in 2014 our cash tax payments for the full year will be approximately \$130 million to \$160 million for our current business operations, taking into account our estimated pre-close integration expenditures relating to the AT&T Transaction.

In connection with the pending AT&T Transaction, the Company recognized \$10.6 million of acquisition and integration costs incurred during the first three months of 2014 and \$7.5 million of interest expense related to the Bridge Facility commitment. The Company expects to incur operating expenses of approximately \$140 million to \$170 million in 2014 related to integration activities for the pending AT&T Transaction.

Cash Flows used by Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

For the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, our capital expenditures were \$145.4 million and \$189.0 million (including \$10.3 million of integration-related capital expenditures for the three months ended March 31, 2014 for the AT&T Transaction), respectively. In addition to the capital expenditures mentioned above, network expansion funded by previously received CAF funds amounted to \$6.4 million and \$1.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We anticipate capital expenditures for business operations to decrease in 2014 related to our currently owned properties to approximately \$575 million to \$625 million, as compared to \$634.7 million in 2013. We anticipate an additional \$85 million to \$105 million of capital expenditures in 2014 related to the integration activities of the pending AT&T Transaction.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Cash Flows used by and provided from Financing Activities

Debt Financings

During the first three months of 2014, we entered into secured financings totaling \$10.7 million with four year terms and no stated interest rate for certain equipment purchases.

Debt Reduction

During the first three months of 2014 and 2013, we retired an aggregate principal amount of \$14.5 million and \$517.1 million, respectively, of debt consisting of \$14.4 million and \$517.0 million, respectively, of senior unsecured debt and \$0.1 million of rural utilities service loan contracts for each period.

We may from time to time make additional repurchases of our debt in the open market, through tender offers, exchanges of debt securities, by exercising rights to call or in privately negotiated transactions. We may also refinance existing debt or exchange existing debt for newly issued debt obligations. We do not expect the additional financing of \$1.9 billion that will be used for the AT&T Transaction to affect our current refinancing plans.

Bridge Facility

On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment letter for a bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facility) and recognized interest expense related to this commitment of \$7.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2014. On January 29, 2014, we entered into a bridge loan agreement with the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (the Bridge Loan Agreement), pursuant to which the Lenders have agreed at closing of the AT&T Transaction to provide to us an unsecured bridge loan facility for up to \$1.9 billion for the purposes of funding (i) substantially all of the purchase price for the AT&T Transaction and (ii) the fees and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated by the stock purchase agreement for the AT&T Transaction. Pursuant to the Bridge Loan Agreement, if and to the extent we do not, or are unable to, issue debt securities yielding up to \$1.9 billion in gross cash proceeds on or prior to the closing of the AT&T Transaction, we shall draw down up to \$1.9 billion, less the amount of the debt securities, if any, issued by us on or prior to the closing of the AT&T Transaction, in aggregate principal amount of loans under the Bridge Facility to fund the purchase price of the AT&T Transaction.

Bank Financing

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the other lenders party thereto, for a \$575.0 million senior unsecured term loan facility with a final maturity of October 14, 2016 (the Credit Agreement). The entire facility was drawn upon execution of the Credit Agreement in October 2011. Repayment of the outstanding principal balance is made in quarterly installments in the amount of \$14.4 million, which commenced on March 31, 2012, with the remaining outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the final maturity date. Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of the Company. Interest rate margins under the facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustments based on the Total Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such term is defined in the Credit Agreement. The current pricing on this facility is LIBOR plus 2.875%.

Revolving Credit Facility

The Company has a revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the lenders party thereto and the other parties named therein (the Revolving Credit Agreement), for a \$750.0 million revolving credit facility (the Revolving Credit Facility) with a scheduled termination date of November 3, 2016. As of March 31, 2014, no borrowings had been made under the Revolving Credit Facility. Associated commitment fees under the Revolving Credit Facility will vary from time to time depending on the Company's debt rating (as defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement) and were 0.400% per annum as of March 31, 2014. During the term of the Revolving Credit Facility, the Company may borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may obtain letters of credit, subject to customary borrowing conditions. Loans under the Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest based on the alternate base rate or the adjusted LIBO Rate (each as determined in the Revolving Credit Agreement), at the Company's debt rating (ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base rate borrowings and 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO Rate borrowings). The current pricing on this facility would have been 1.00% or 2.00%, respectively, as of March 31, 2014. Letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit Facility will also be subject to fees that vary depending on the Company's debt rating. The Revolving Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes but may not be used to fund dividend payments.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indentures, the Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreement and the Bridge Loan Agreement include the timely payment of principal and interest when due, the maintenance of our corporate existence, keeping proper books and records in accordance with U.S. GAAP, restrictions on the incurrence of liens on our assets, and restrictions on asset sales and transfers, mergers and other changes in corporate control. We are not subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends either by contract, rule or regulation, other than that imposed by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. However, we would be restricted under the Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreement and the Bridge Loan Agreement from declaring dividends if an event of default occurred and was continuing at the time or would result from the dividend declaration.

The Credit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Agreement each contain a maximum leverage ratio covenant. Under those covenants, we are required to maintain a ratio of (i) total indebtedness minus cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash) in excess of \$50.0 million to (ii) consolidated adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the agreements) over the last four quarters not to exceed 4.50 to 1.

The Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreement, the Bridge Loan Agreement and certain indentures for our senior unsecured debt obligations limit our ability to create liens or merge or consolidate with other companies and our subsidiaries' ability to borrow funds, subject to important exceptions and qualifications.

As of March 31, 2014, we were in compliance with all of our debt and credit facility covenants.

Dividends

We currently intend to pay regular quarterly dividends. Our ability to fund a regular quarterly dividend will be impacted by our ability to generate cash from operations. The declarations and payment of future dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors, and will depend upon many factors, including our financial condition, results of operations, growth prospects, funding requirements, applicable law, restrictions in agreements governing our indebtedness and other factors our Board of Directors deem relevant.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements, transactions, obligations or other relationships with unconsolidated entities that would be expected to have a material current or future effect upon our financial statements.

Future Commitments

In our normal course of business we have obligations under certain non-cancelable arrangements for services. During 2012, we entered into a "take or pay" arrangement for the purchase of future long distance and carrier services. Our remaining commitments under the arrangement are \$145.5 million and \$140.8 million for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of March 31, 2014, we expect to utilize the services included within the arrangement and no liability for the "take or pay" provision has been recorded.

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investment commitments to three state regulatory commissions, we placed a total of \$115.0 million in cash into several escrow accounts and obtained a letter of credit for \$190.0 million in 2010. Another \$72.4 million of cash in an escrow account was acquired in connection with the 2010 Transaction to be used for service quality initiatives in the state of West Virginia. As of March 31, 2014, \$176.3 million had been released from the escrow accounts. As of March 31, 2014, the Company had a restricted cash balance in the remaining escrow account of \$11.4 million, including interest earned. The aggregate amount of this escrow account will continue to decrease over time as we make the required capital expenditures in West Virginia. In September 2013, the letter of credit for the remaining \$20 million expired.

In addition, the FCC and certain state regulatory commissions, in connection with granting their approvals of the 2010 Transaction, specified certain capital expenditure and operating requirements for the Acquired Territories for specified periods of time post-closing. These requirements focus primarily on certain capital investment commitments to expand broadband availability to at least 85% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 Mbps by the end of 2013. We are required to provide download speeds of 4 Mbps to at least 75%, 80% and 85% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, we met our FCC requirement to provide 3 Mbps coverage to 85% of the households in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2013. We also met our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps coverage to 80% of the

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

households in the Acquired Territories by the end of 2014. As of March 31, 2014, we expanded broadband availability in excess of 4 Mbps to 83.6% of the households throughout the Acquired Territories.

As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had expanded our broadband availability to the households throughout the Company's territories as follows:

(In excess of)	As of March 31, 2014	As of December 31, 2013
1 Mbps	90%	90%
3 Mbps	88%	86%
4 Mbps	86%	83%
6 Mbps	83%	76%
12 Mbps	74%	61%
20 Mbps	53%	48%

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We review all significant estimates affecting our consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis and record the effect of any necessary adjustment prior to their publication. Uncertainties with respect to such estimates and assumptions are inherent in the preparation of financial statements; accordingly, it is possible that actual results could differ from those estimates and changes to estimates could occur in the near term. The preparation of our interim financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and (iii) the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and judgments are used when accounting for revenue recognition including the allowance for doubtful accounts, impairment of long-lived assets, impairment of intangible assets, depreciation and amortization, pension and other postretirement benefits, income taxes and contingencies, among others.

Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and our Audit Committee has reviewed our disclosures relating to such estimates.

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates from the information provided in Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

New Accounting Pronouncements

There were no new accounting standards issued and adopted by the Company during the first three months of 2014, or that have been issued but are not required to be adopted until future periods, with any material financial statement impact.

Internal Control - Integrated Framework

On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued its updated Internal Control – Integrated Framework (the 2013 Framework) and related illustrative documents. COSO will continue to make available its original Framework during the transition period extending to December 15, 2014. The Company currently utilizes COSO's original Framework, which was published in 1992 and is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing and conducting internal controls over external financial reporting and assessing its effectiveness. The 2013 Framework is expected to help organizations design and implement internal control in light of many changes in business and operating environments since the issuance of the original Framework, broaden the application of internal control in addressing operations and reporting objectives, and clarify the requirements for determining what constitutes effective internal control. We plan to adopt the 2013 Framework in 2014 and do not expect that it will have a significant impact on the Company.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(b) Results of Operations

REVENUE

Revenue is generated primarily through the provision of voice services, data services, video services, network access, carrier services and other Internet services. Such revenues are generated through either a monthly recurring fee or a fee based on usage, and revenue recognition is not dependent upon significant judgments by management, with the exception of a determination of a provision for uncollectible amounts.

Revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$51.4 million, or 4%, to \$1,154.0 million as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013. The decline during the first three months of 2014 is primarily the result of decreases in voice services revenues and lower switched and nonswitched access revenue, partially offset by an increase in data services revenue, each as described in more detail below. Additionally, wireless revenue decreased by \$7.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to the sale of our Mohave Cellular Limited Partnership (Mohave) interest on April 1, 2013.

Switched access and subsidy revenue of \$133.1 million represented 12% of our revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2014. Switched access revenue was \$53.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014, or 5% of our revenues, down from \$62.3 million, or 5% of our revenues, for the three months ended March 31, 2013. Subsidy revenue was \$80.0 million, or 7% of our revenues, for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We expect declining revenue trends in switched access and subsidy revenue to continue during the remainder of 2014.

During the first quarter of 2014, we lost 14,000 customers, net, as compared to a loss of 32,900 customers, net, during the first quarter of 2013. We believe the improved customer retention in 2014 as compared to 2013 is due to simplified products and pricing, our local engagement strategy, improved customer service and our investments in our network.

Total residential revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 declined \$18.6 million, or 4%, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013 primarily as a result of decreases in voice services revenue and the sale of our interest in the Mohave partnership, partially offset by increases in data services revenue and increases in subscriber line charges due to additional access recovery charges. These access recovery charges are a result of regulatory changes related to Intercarrier Compensation reform and are expected to continue to increase, as allowed by the FCC

to partially offset regulatory mandated declines in switched access rates. We had approximately 2,794,000 and 2,859,000 total residential customers as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We lost approximately 9,600 and 27,800 residential customers, net, during the quarters ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, principally driven by declines in voice customers, and our residential customer monthly churn was 1.63% and 1.64% for the quarters ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Average monthly residential revenue per customer (residential ARPC) increased \$0.28, or 0.5%, to \$59.07 during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013. The overall increase in residential ARPC is primarily due to the shift in product mix to a higher percentage of the Company's residential customers that take broadband services as compared to voice only customers. The Company expects continuing improvements in data services revenue, primarily driven by increased broadband customers, and continuing declines in voice services revenue.

Total business revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 declined \$23.6 million, or 4%, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013, principally as a result of decreases in our voice services revenue and wireless backhaul. We had approximately 266,400 and 281,100 total business customers as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We lost approximately 4,400 and 5,100 business customers, net, during the quarters ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Average monthly business revenue per customer (business ARPC) increased \$6.66, or 1.0%, to \$651.53 during the three months ended March 31, 2014 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013. The overall increase in business ARPC is primarily due to declining customer counts for our small business customers that carry a lower ARPC. The Company expects the declines in voice services revenues and wireless backhaul revenues from business customers to continue in 2014, mitigated, in part, by increases in data services revenues.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company added approximately 37,200 net broadband subscribers. During the first three months of 2013, the Company added approximately 28,200 net broadband subscribers. As of March 31, 2014, approximately 74% of our residential broadband customers, excluding multiple dwelling units and wireless high speed internet, subscribed to a bundle of services. As of March 31, 2014, we were able to offer broadband to approximately 6.5 million households, or 90% of the 7.2 million households in our markets. The increase in broadband subscribers contributed to our improved data services revenue performance. We continue to invest in network speed and capacity to support our goal of

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

increasing broadband penetration and market share. We expect to continue to increase broadband subscribers during the remainder of 2014.

Management believes that customer counts and average monthly revenue per customer are important factors in evaluating our trends. Among the key services we provide to residential customers are voice service, data service and video service. We continue to explore the potential to provide additional services to our customer base, with the objective of meeting all of our customers' communications needs, as well as increasing revenue per customer. For business customers we provide voice and data services, as well as a broad range of value-added services.

In the section "Other Financial and Operating Data" below is a table that presents customer counts, average monthly revenue per customer and customer churn. It also categorizes revenue into customer revenue (residential and business) and regulatory revenue (switched access and subsidy revenue). The decline in the number of customers was partially offset by increased penetration of additional higher revenue generating products sold to both residential and business customers, which has increased our average monthly revenue per customer. Economic conditions, a substantial further loss of customers, and increasing competition could make it more difficult to sell our bundled service offerings, and cause us to increase our promotions and/or lower our prices for our products and services, which would adversely affect our revenue, profitability and cash flows.

OTHER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

	As of March 31, 2014	As of December 31, 2013	% Increase (Decrease)	As of March 31, 2013	% Increase (Decrease)
Customers	3,060,280	3,074,280	(0) %	3,140,281	(3) %
Broadband subscribers	1,903,828	1,866,670	2 %	1,782,599	7 %
Video subscribers	390,334	385,353	1 %	364,961	7 %

Revenue (in 000's):	For the three March 31, 2014	months ended 2013	\$ Increase (Decrease)		ncrease ecrease)
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	¢ 405 064	¢ 514 505	¢ (10 5(1)	(A)	07
Residential (1)	\$ 495,964 524.074	-	\$ (18,561)	(4)	
Business (1)	524,974	548,613	(23,639)	(4)	
Customer revenue	1,020,938	1,063,138	(42,200)	(4)	
Switched access and subsidy	133,108	142,258	(9,150)	(6)	
Total revenue	\$ 1,154,046	\$ 1,205,396	\$ (51,350)	(4)	%
Switched access minutes of use (in millions)	3,943	4,290		(8)	%
	As of or for t	he three			
	months ender	d March 31.	% Increase		
	2014	2013	(Decrease)		
Residential Customer Metrics:					
Customers	2,793,908	2,859,229	(2)	%	
Revenue (in 000's) (1)	\$ 495,964	\$ 514,525	. ,	%	
Average monthly residential	1)	, - ,			
revenue per customer $(1)(2)$	\$ 59.07	\$ 58.79	0 9	%	
Customer monthly churn	1.63%	1.64%	(1)	%	
Business Customer Metrics:					
Customers	266,372	281,052	(-)	%	
Revenue (in 000's) (1)	\$ 524,974	\$ 548,613	(4)	%	
Average monthly business revenue per customer (1)	\$ 651.53	\$ 644.87	1 4	10	

(1) Revised from the previously disclosed amounts to reflect the reclassification of certain revenues of \$273 from residential to business for the first quarter of 2013.

(2) Calculation excludes the Mohave Cellular Limited Partnership (Mohave), which was sold to Verizon Wireless on April 1,

2013.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

REVENUE

	For the three	months ended		
(\$ in thousands)	March 31,			
			\$ Increase	% Increase
	2014	2013	(Decrease)	(Decrease)
Voice services	\$ 482,319	\$ 525,944	\$ (43,625)	(8) %
Data and internet services	461,496	454,836	6,660	1 %
Other	77,123	82,358	(5,235)	(6) %
Customer revenue	1,020,938	1,063,138	(42,200)	(4) %
Switched access and subsidy	133,108	142,258	(9,150)	(6) %
Total revenue	\$ 1,154,046	\$ 1,205,396	\$ (51,350)	(4) %

Voice Services

Voice services revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$43.6 million, or 8%, to \$482.3 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to the continued loss of voice customers and, to a lesser extent, decreases in long distance services revenue and individual features packages, partially offset by increased local voice charges to residential and business end users to the extent permitted by the Order. Local and enhanced services revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$36.9 million, or 9%, to \$395.8 million, primarily due to the continued loss of voice customers and, to a lesser extent, decreases in individual features packages, partially offset by increased local voice charges to residential and business end users to the extent, decreases in individual features packages, partially offset by increased local voice charges to residential and business end users to the extent, decreases in individual features packages, partially offset by increased local voice charges to residential and business end users to the extent permitted by the Order. Long distance services revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$6.7 million, or 7%, to \$86.5 million, primarily due to lower minutes of use driven by fewer customers, partially offset by increased cost recovery surcharge rates.

Data and Internet Services

Data and Internet services revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 increased \$6.7 million, or 1%, to \$461.5 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013. Data services revenue increased \$20.7

Table of Contents

million, or 9%, to \$242.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014, as compared with the same period of 2013, primarily due to increases in the number of broadband customers and sales of Frontier Secure products. As of March 31, 2014, the number of the Company's broadband subscribers increased by approximately 121,200, or 7%, since March 31, 2013. Data and Internet services also includes nonswitched access revenue from data transmission services to other carriers and high-volume business customers with dedicated high-capacity Internet and Ethernet circuits. Nonswitched access revenue decreased \$14.1 million, or 6%, to \$219.4 million, for the three months ended March 31, 2014, as compared with the comparable period of 2013, primarily due to lower monthly recurring charges attributable to a reduction in wireless backhaul and other business revenues, partially offset by the favorable impact of disputes with carriers and lower customer credits. Carrier services excluding wireless backhaul decreased slightly, as we continue to provide network bandwidth to other communications carriers. We expect wireless data usage to continue to increase, which may drive the need for additional wireless backhaul capacity. Despite the need for additional capacity, we expect to experience declines in wireless backhaul revenue throughout the remainder of 2014, as compared to the same periods of the prior year, as our carrier partners migrate to Ethernet solutions at a lower price point.

Other

Other revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$5.2 million, or 6%, to \$77.1 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to lower wireless revenue associated with the sale of our interest in the Mohave partnership on April 1, 2013 and lower directory services revenue, partially offset by lower bad debt expenses that are charged against revenue.

Switched Access and Subsidy

Switched access and subsidy revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$9.2 million, or 6%, to \$133.1 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013. Switched access revenue decreased \$9.1 million, or 15%, to \$53.2 million, for the first three months of 2014, as compared with the same period of 2013, primarily due to the impact of a decline in minutes of use related to access line losses and the displacement of minutes of use by wireless, email and other communications services combined with a reduction due to the impact of the lower rates enacted by the FCC's intercarrier

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

compensation reform in July 2013. Switched access and subsidy revenue includes subsidy payments we receive from federal and state agencies, including surcharges billed to customers that are remitted to universal service administrators. Subsidy revenue remained flat at \$80.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Federal and state subsidies and surcharges (which are billed to customers and remitted to universal service administrators) for the Company were \$42.2 million, \$7.9 million and \$29.9 million, respectively, and \$80.0 million in total, or 7% of our revenues, for the three months ended March 31, 2014. The federal and state subsidy revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 represents 4% of our consolidated revenues. Total federal and state subsidies and surcharges were \$80.0 million, or 7% of our revenues, for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the Order to reform the USF and Intercarrier Compensation. The Order changed how federal subsidies are calculated and disbursed, with these changes being phased-in beginning in July 2012. These changes transition the USF, which supports voice services in high-cost areas, to the CAF, which supports broadband deployment in high-cost areas. CAF Phase I, implemented in 2012, provided for ongoing USF support for price cap carriers capped at the 2011 amount. In addition, the FCC in the first round of CAF Phase I made available for price cap ILECs an additional \$300 million in incremental high-cost broadband support to be used for broadband deployment to unserved areas. In 2012 and early 2013, we received \$71.9 million in the first round of CAF Phase I funds. The \$71.9 million in the first round of CAF Phase I support is expected to enable an incremental 92,877 households for broadband service and was accounted for as Contributions in Aid of Construction. We are required to spend the CAF Phase I funds to enable these 92,877 households no later than July 24, 2015. We initially recorded such funds as increases to Cash and Other liabilities in the balance sheet. We spent \$44.0 million of the previously received CAF funds on network expansion through March 31, 2014.

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report and Order authorizing a second round of CAF Phase I. As part of this May 2013 Report and Order, the FCC expanded the areas eligible for funding to include those that lack service of 3Mbps download and 768 kbps upload. In 2013, Frontier applied for funds from the second round of CAF Phase I and in December 2013 the FCC awarded \$57.6 million to us to serve 94,899 locations in our high-cost, unserved and underserved areas across multiple states. The FCC also announced on January 10, 2014, that Frontier was eligible for an additional \$3.7 million in funding to serve 6,815 locations. We received these funds in February 2014. The second round of CAF Phase I includes certain accompanying spending requirements from the Company, and our capital expenditure plans take this into account.

The Order also makes changes to Intercarrier Compensation. Intercarrier Compensation, which is the payment framework that governs how carriers compensate each other for the exchange of interstate traffic, began a multi-year transition in July 2012, with the second step implemented in July 2013. The transition will move terminating traffic to

a near zero rate by 2017. We expect to be able to recover a significant portion of those revenues through end user rates and other replacement support mechanisms. We do not expect these changes to have a material impact on our revenues in 2014.

Effective December 29, 2011, the Order required providers to pay interstate access rates for the termination of VoIP toll traffic. On April 25, 2012, the FCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specified that changes to originating access rates for VoIP traffic will not be implemented until July 2014. The Order has been challenged by certain parties in court and certain parties have also petitioned the FCC to reconsider various aspects of the Order. The net impact of the Order during the period from July 2012 through March 2014 was immaterial.

Certain states also have their own open proceedings to address reform to intrastate access charges and other intercarrier compensation and state universal service funds. Although the FCC has pre-empted state jurisdiction on most access charges, many states could consider moving forward with their proceedings. We cannot predict when or how these matters will be decided or the effect on our subsidy or switched access revenues.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

OPERATING EXPENSES

NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSES

(\$ in thousands)	For the thre ended Marc			
	2014	2013	<pre>\$ Increase (Decrease)</pre>	
Network access expenses	\$ 107,092	\$ 109,398	\$ (2,306)	(2) %

Network access expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$2.3 million, or 2%, to \$107.1 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to decreased promotional costs of \$7.8 million, partially offset by an increase in network access expenses related to higher broadband customer counts.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

(\$ in thousands)	For the three months ended March 31,				
			\$ Increase	% Increase	
	2014	2013	(Decrease)	(Decrease)	

Wage and benefit expenses	\$ 276,860	\$ 291,574	\$ (14,714)	(5)	%
All other operating expenses	252,066	249,925	2,141	1	%
	\$ 528,926	\$ 541,499	\$ (12,573)	(2)	%

Wage and benefit expenses

Wage and benefit expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$14.7 million, or 5%, to \$276.9 million, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to lower costs for compensation resulting from lower average employee headcount combined with lower costs for certain other benefits, including pension and OPEB expense, as discussed below. Wage and benefit expenses included \$0.4 million and \$2.4 million of severance costs for the three month periods in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Pension and OPEB costs for the Company are included in our wage and benefit expenses. Pension and OPEB costs for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were approximately \$14.3 million and \$20.6 million, respectively. Pension and OPEB costs include pension and OPEB expense of \$18.2 million and \$25.5 million, less amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures of \$3.9 million and \$4.9 million, respectively.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset values, we estimate that our 2014 pension and OPEB expenses will be approximately \$65 million to \$85 million for our current business operations, excluding amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures, as compared to \$97.1 million in 2013, excluding the impact of pension settlement costs and amounts capitalized into the cost of capital expenditures.

All other operating expenses

All other operating expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2014 increased \$2.1 million, or 1%, to \$252.1 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to an increase in certain litigation reserves and increased fleet and maintenance expenses, partially offset by lower outside service costs.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

(\$ in thousands)	For the th ended Marc	ree months the 31,		
	2014	2013	<pre>\$ Increase (Decrease)</pre>	% Increase (Decrease)
Depreciation expense Amortization expense	75,891	\$ 216,654 87,021 \$ 303,675	(11,130)	(5) % (13) % (7) %

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$22.3 million, or 7%, to \$281.4 million, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2013. Amortization expense decreased \$11.1 million due to the lower amortization related to the customer base that is amortized on an accelerated method. Depreciation expense decreased \$11.1 million primarily due to a lower net asset base and changes in the remaining useful lives of certain plant assets.

We annually commission an independent study to update the estimated remaining useful lives of our plant assets. The latest study was completed in the fourth quarter of 2013, and after review and analysis of the results, we adopted new lives for certain plant assets as of October 1, 2013. This change had an immaterial impact on depreciation expense for the first quarter of 2014. Our "composite depreciation rate" for plant assets was 6.24% as a result of the study. We anticipate depreciation expense of approximately \$800 million to \$820 million for 2014 for our current business operations.

Amortization expense includes the apportionment of the cost of the intangible assets (primarily customer base) that were acquired in the 2010 Transaction based on an estimated useful life of nine years for the residential customer base and 12 years for the business customer base, amortized on an accelerated method. We anticipate amortization expense of approximately \$285 million for 2014 for our current business operations.

ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION COSTS

(¢ := therease de)	For the three months ended March 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2014	2013	
Acquisition and integration costs	\$ 10,596	\$ -	

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company began to incur acquisition and integration costs in connection with the AT&T Transaction. Acquisition costs include legal, financial advisory, accounting, regulatory and other related costs. Integration costs include expenses incurred in connection with the AT&T Transaction to integrate the network and information technology platforms and to enable other integration initiatives. The Company incurred \$10.6 million of operating expenses, consisting of \$1.6 million and \$9.0 million of acquisition and integration costs, respectively, related to the AT&T Transaction during the three months ended March 31, 2014. We also incurred \$10.3 million in capital expenditures related to integration activities during the three months ended March 31, 2014. We anticipate closing the AT&T Transaction during the fourth quarter of 2014.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME, NET / INTEREST EXPENSE / INCOME TAX EXPENSE

	For the thre ended Marc			
(\$ in thousands)	2014	2013	<pre>\$ Increase (Decrease)</pre>	% Increase (Decrease)
Investment and other income, net	\$ 1,395	\$ 4,654	\$ (3,259)	(70) %
Interest expense	\$ 170,957	\$ 171,420	\$ (463)	- %
Income tax expense	\$ 17,189	\$ 33,275	\$ (16,086)	(48) %

Investment and other income, net

Investment and other income, net for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$3.3 million to \$1.4 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to a decrease of \$1.7 million in the settlement of customer advances and \$1.3 million in investment gains associated with cash received in the first quarter of 2013 in connection with our previously written-off investment in Adelphia.

Our average cash balances were \$917.1 million and \$1,101.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our average total restricted cash balances were \$13.4 million and \$42.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$0.5 million to \$171.0 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to lower average debt levels resulting from the debt refinancing activities and debt retirements of \$813.0 million during 2013, partially offset by the commitment fees on the Bridge Loan Facility during the first quarter of 2014. Our average debt outstanding was \$8,124.0 million and \$8,562.0 million for the first quarter of 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our composite average borrowing rate as of March 31, 2014 and 2013 was 7.94% for each period.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the three months ended March 31, 2014 decreased \$16.1 million to \$17.2 million, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2013, primarily due to lower pretax income in 2014. The effective tax rate for the first three months of 2014 and 2013 was 30.4% and 39.6%, respectively.

Income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2014 include the impact of a \$2.9 million benefit arising from state tax law changes.

The amount of our uncertain tax positions for which the statutes of limitations are expected to expire during the next twelve months and which would affect our effective tax rate is \$2.9 million as of March 31, 2014.

We received \$4.9 million and paid \$0.9 million in net cash taxes during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our 2013 cash taxes paid reflected the continued impact of bonus depreciation in accordance with the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012. Absent any legislative changes, we expect that in 2014 our cash tax payments for the full year will be approximately \$130 million to \$160 million for our current business operations, taking into account our estimated pre-close integration expenditures related to the AT&T Transaction.

Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier

Net income attributable to common shareholders of Frontier for the first quarter of 2014 was \$39.3 million, or \$0.04 per share, as compared to \$48.1 million, or \$0.05 per share, in the first quarter of 2013.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the normal course of our business operations due to ongoing investing and funding activities, including those associated with our pension plan assets. Market risk refers to the potential change in fair value of a financial instrument as a result of fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. We do not hold or issue derivative instruments, derivative commodity instruments or other financial instruments for trading purposes. As a result, we do not undertake any specific actions to cover our exposure to market risks, and we are not party to any market risk management agreements other than in the normal course of business. Our primary market risk exposures from interest rate risk and equity price risk are as follows:

Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the interest-bearing portion of our pension investment portfolio and related obligations, and floating rate indebtedness. As of March 31, 2014, 95% of our long-term debt had fixed interest rates with minimal exposure to interest rate changes. We had no interest rate swap agreements related to our fixed rate debt in effect at March 31, 2014.

Our objectives in managing our interest rate risk are to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, all but \$445.6 million of our outstanding borrowings at March 31, 2014 have fixed interest rates. In addition, our undrawn \$750.0 million revolving credit facility has interest rates that float with the LIBO Rate, as defined. Consequently, we have limited material future earnings or cash flow exposures from changes in interest rates on our long-term debt. An adverse change in interest rates would increase the amount that we pay on our variable rate obligations and could result in fluctuations in the fair value of our fixed rate obligations. Based upon our overall interest rate exposure at March 31, 2014, a near-term change in interest rates would not materially affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

At March 31, 2014, the fair value of our long-term debt was estimated to be approximately \$8.3 billion, based on our overall weighted average borrowing rate of 7.94% and our overall weighted average maturity of approximately nine years. As of March 31, 2014, there has been no material change in the weighted average maturity applicable to our obligations since December 31, 2013.

Equity Price Exposure

Our exposure to market risks for changes in equity security prices as of March 31, 2014 is limited to our pension plan assets. We have no other security investments of any material amount.

The Company's pension plan assets have increased from \$1,216.5 million at December 31, 2013 to \$1,229.5 million at March 31, 2014, an increase of \$13.0 million, or 1%. This increase is a result of positive investment returns of \$40.3 million and cash contributions of \$11.6 million, offset by benefit payments of \$38.9 million. An additional cash contribution of \$19.6 million was made on April 15, 2014. We expect that we will make contributions of cash and/or other assets to our pension plan of approximately \$100 million in 2014.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, regarding the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Based upon this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded, as of the end of the period covered by this report, March 31, 2014, that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial reporting

We reviewed our internal control over financial reporting at March 31, 2014. There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in an evaluation thereof that occurred during the first fiscal quarter of 2014 that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

On May 14, 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued its updated Internal Control – Integrated Framework (the 2013 Framework) and related illustrative documents. COSO will continue to make available its original Framework during the transition period extending to December 15, 2014. The Company currently utilizes COSO's original Framework, which was published in 1992 and is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing and conducting internal controls over external financial reporting and assessing their effectiveness. The 2013 Framework is expected to help organizations design and implement internal control in light of many changes in business and operating environments since the issuance of the original Framework, broaden the application of internal control in addressing operations and reporting objectives, and clarify the requirements for determining what constitutes effective internal control. We plan to adopt the 2013 Framework in 2014 and do not expect that it will have a significant impact on the Company.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this report. There have been no material changes to our legal proceedings from the information provided in Item 3. "Legal Proceedings" included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

We are party to various legal proceedings (including individual, class and putative class actions) arising in the normal course of our business covering a wide range of matters and types of claims including, but not limited to, general contracts, billing disputes, rights of access, taxes and surcharges, consumer protection, trademark and patent infringement, employment, regulatory, tort, claims of competitors and disputes with other carriers. Litigation is subject to uncertainty and the outcome of individual matters is not predictable. However, we believe that the ultimate resolution of all such matters, after considering insurance coverage or other indemnities to which we are entitled, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or our cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no changes to the Risk Factors described in Part 1, Item 1A. "Risk Factors" in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the quarter ended March 31, 2014.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Period	Total Number of Shares Purchased	Average Price Paid per Share
January 1, 2014 to January 31, 2014 Employee Transactions (1)	109	\$ 4.73
February 1, 2014 to February 28, 2014 Employee Transactions (1)	894,073	\$ 4.79
March 1, 2014 to March 31, 2014 Employee Transactions (1)	3,361	\$ 4.97
Totals January 1, 2014 to March 31, 2014 Employee Transactions (1)	897,543	\$ 4.79

(1) Includes restricted shares withheld (under the terms of grants under employee stock compensation plans) to offset minimum tax withholding obligations that occur upon the vesting of restricted shares. The Company's stock compensation plans provide that the value of shares withheld shall be the average of the high and low price of the Company's common stock on the date the relevant transaction occurs.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibits:

- 31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
- 31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
- 32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 101.INS XBRL Instance Document.
- 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
- 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.
- 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.
- 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.
- 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION (Registrant)

By: /s/ John M. Jureller John M. Jureller Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 8, 2014